
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA,-— 

Alexandria Division 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) 

v. 

2 2 2009 

CLYDE AUSTIN GRAY, JR., 

a/k/a Poochie, 

CRIMINAL NO. 1:0 

Judge Gerald Bruce Lee 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

Dana J. Boente, United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Virginia, Timothy D. 

Belevetz, Assistant United States Attorney, Karen Servidea, Special Assistant United States 

Attorney, the defendant, Clyde Austin Gray, Jr., and the defendant's counsel have entered into an 

agreement pursuant to Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. The terms of the 

agreement are as follows: 

1. Offense and Maximum Penalties 

The defendant agrees to agrees to waive indictment and plead guilty to a single count 

criminal information charging the defendant with conspiracy to commit bank fraud, in violation 

of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349. The maximum penalties for this offense are a 

maximum term of 30 years of imprisonment, a fine of the higher of $1,000,000 or twice the gross 

gain or loss, full restitution, a special assessment, and five years of supervised release. The 

defendant understands that this supervised release term is in addition to any prison term the 

defendant may receive, and that a violation of a term of supervised release could result in the 

defendant being returned to prison for the full term of supervised release. 
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The defendant understands that the Court has not yet determined a sentence and that any estimate 

of the advisory sentencing range under the U.S. Sentencing Commission's Sentencing Guidelines 

Manual the defendant may have received from the defendant's counsel, the United States, or the 

Probation Office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the United States, the 

Probation Office, or the Court. Additionally, pursuant to the Supreme Court's decision in United 

States v. Booker, 543 U.S. 220, 125 S. Ct. 738 (2005), the Court, after considering the factors set 

forth in Title 18, United States Code, Section 3553(a), may impose a sentence above or below the 

advisory sentencing range, subject only to review by higher courts for reasonableness. The 

United States makes no promise or representation concerning what sentence the defendant will 

receive, and the defendant cannot withdraw a guilty plea based upon the actual sentence. 

Further, in accordance with Rule 1 l(c)(l)(B) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, the 

United States and the defendant will recommend to the Court that the following provision of the 

Sentencing Guidelines applies: 

a. The fraud loss attributable to the defendant's conduct is more than $1,000,000. 

Pursuant to Sections 2Bl.l(a)(l) and 2Bl.l(b)(l)(I) of the guidelines, the 

defendant's base offense level is 23. 

b. The defendant's conduct involved 10 or more victims. Pursuant to Section 

2Bl.l(b)(2)(A) of the guidelines, the defendant's offense level should be 

increased by two levels. 

c. The defendant was an organizer and leader of a criminal activity that involved five 

or more participants and was extensive. Pursuant to Section 3B1. l(a), the 

defendant's offense level should be increased by four levels. 



d. The United States and the defendant agree that the defendant has assisted the 

government in the investigation and prosecution of the defendant's own 

misconduct by timely notifying authorities of the defendant's intention to enter a 

plea of guilty, thereby permitting the government to avoid preparing for trial and 

permitting the government and the Court to allocate their resources efficiently. If 

the defendant qualifies for a two-level decrease in offense level pursuant to 

U.S.S.G. § 3E1. l(a) and the offense level prior to the operation of that section is a 

level 16 or greater, the government agrees to file, pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 3El.l(b), 

a motion prior to, or at the time of, sentencing for an additional one-level decrease 

in the defendant's offense level. 

5. Waiver of Appeal, FOIA, and Privacy Act Rights 

The defendant also understands that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 affords a 

defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed. Nonetheless, the defendant knowingly 

waives the right to appeal the conviction and any sentence within the statutory maximum 

described above (or the manner in which that sentence was determined) on the grounds set forth 

in Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 or on any ground whatsoever, in exchange for the 

concessions made by the United States in this plea agreement. This agreement does not affect 

the rights or obligations of the United States as set forth in Title 18, United States Code, Section 

3742(b). The defendant also hereby waives all rights, whether asserted directly or by a 

representative, to request or receive from any department or agency of the United States any 

records pertaining to the investigation or prosecution of this case, including without limitation 



any records that may be sought under the Freedom of Information Act, Title 5, United States 

Code, Section 552, or the Privacy Act, Title 5, United States Code, Section 552a. 

6. Waiver of DNA Testing 

The defendant also understands that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3600 affords a 

defendant the right to request DNA testing of evidence after conviction. Nonetheless, the 

defendant knowingly waives that right. The defendant further understands that 

this waiver applies to DNA testing of any items of evidence in this case that could be subjected 

to DNA testing, and that the waiver forecloses any opportunity to have evidence submitted for 

DNA testing in this case or in any post-conviction proceeding for any purpose, including to 

support a claim of innocence to the charges admitted in this plea agreement. 

7. Special Assessment 

Before sentencing in this case, the defendant agrees to pay a mandatory special 

assessment of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per count of conviction. 

8. Payment of Monetary Penalties 

The defendant understands and agrees that, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 3613, whatever monetary penalties are imposed by the Court will be due and payable 

immediately and subject to immediate enforcement by the United States as provided for in 

Section 3613. Furthermore, the defendant agrees to provide all of his financial information to the 

United States and the Probation Office and, if requested, to participate in a pre-sentencing 

debtor's examination. If the Court imposes a schedule of payments, the defendant understands 

that the schedule of payments is merely a minimum schedule of payments and not the only 

method, nor a limitation on the methods, available to the United States to enforce the judgment. 



If the defendant is incarcerated, the defendant agrees to participate in the Bureau of Prisons' 

Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, regardless of whether the Court specifically directs 

participation or imposes a schedule of payments. 

9. Restitution for Offense of Conviction 

The defendant agrees to the entry of a Restitution Order for the full amount of the 

victims' losses. At this time, the Government is aware that the following victims have suffered 

the following losses. 

BB&T Bank $23,695.00 

Attn: Brenda Michaels 

810 Southpark Boulevard 

Colonial Heights, VA 23834 

Bank of America $813,142.87 

Security Recovery Support 

MO 1-800-06-15 

800 Market Street 

St. Louis, MO 63102 

Chevy Chase Bank $12,000.00 

Attn: Deserie Comfort 

14601 SweitzerLane 

Laurel, MD 20707 

Citi Investigative Services $55,400.00 

Attn: Angela Reichert 

BSP01B 

300 St. Paul Place 

Baltimore, MD 21202 

M&TBank $54,331.00 

Attn: Dan Bohrer 

405 Washington Avenue 

Towson, MD 21204 



MidAmerica Bank $3,200.00 

c/o National City Bank 

400 West Fourth Street 

Locator # RJ2S-54 

Royal Oak, MI 48067 

PNC Bank $26,900.00 

Attn: Rob Smetzer 

128 West Washington Street 

Hagerstown, MD 21740 

SunTrust Bank $219,600.00 

Attn: Mark Koenigsberg 

CMD 8501 

1440 lSweitzer Lane 

Laurel, MD 20707 

TDBank $9,160.00 

Attn: Marion Krowiak 

Restitution Coordinator 

Customer Service Building 1 

9000 Atrium Way 

Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054 

Wachovia Bank $ 104,100.00 

Attn: Peggy Stansbury 

MD9028 

8851 BelairRoad 

Baltimore, MD 21236 

10. Immunity from Further Prosecution in this District 

The United States will not further criminally prosecute the defendant in the Eastern 

District of Virginia for the specific conduct described in the infonnation or statement of facts. 

11. The Defendant's Obligations Regarding Assets Subject to Forfeiture 

The defendant agrees to identify all assets over which the defendant exercises or 

exercised control, directly or indirectly, within the past three years, or in which the defendant has 

or had during that time any financial interest. The defendant agrees to take all steps as requested 



by the United States to obtain from any other parties by any lawful means any records of assets 

owned at any time by the defendant. The defendant agrees to undergo any polygraph 

examination the United Stales may choose to administer concerning such assets and to provide 

and/or consent to the release of the defendant's tax returns for the previous five years. Defendant 

agrees to forfeit to the United States all of the defendant's interests in any asset of a value of 

more than $1,000 that, within the last three years, the defendant owned, or in which the 

defendant maintained an interest, the ownership of which the defendant fails to disclose to the 

United States in accordance with this agreement. 

12. Forfeiture Agreement 

The defendant agrees to forfeit all interests in any asset that the defendant owns or over 

which the defendant exercises control, directly or indirectly, as well as any property that is 

traceable to, derived from, fungible with, or a substitute for property that constitutes the proceeds 

of his offense, including but not limited to the following specific property: $15,001 in cash. The 

defendant further agrees to waive all interest in the asset(s) in any administrative or judicial 

forfeiture proceeding, whether criminal or civil, state or federal. The defendant agrees to consent 

to the entry of orders of forfeiture for such property and waives the requirements of Federal Rules 

of Criminal Procedure 32.2 and 43(a) regarding notice of the forfeiture in the charging 

instrument, announcement of the forfeiture at sentencing, and incorporation of the forfeiture in 

the judgment. The defendant understands that the forfeiture of assets is part of the sentence that 

may be imposed in this case. 



13. Waiver of Further Review of Forfeiture 

The defendant further agrees to waive all constitutional and statutory challenges in any 

manner (including direct appeal, habeas corpus, or any other means) to any forfeiture carried out 

in accordance with this Plea Agreement on any grounds, including that the forfeiture constitutes 

an excessive fine or punishment. The defendant also waives any failure by the Court to advise 

the defendant of any applicable forfeiture at the time the guilty plea is accepted as required by 

Rule 1 l(b)(l)(J). The defendant agrees to take all steps as requested by the United States to pass 

clear title to forfeitablc assets to the United States, and to testify truthfully in any judicial 

forfeiture proceeding. The defendant understands and agrees that all property covered by this 

agreement is subject to forfeiture as proceeds of illegal conduct. 

14. Breach of the Plea Agreement and Remedies 

This agreement is effective when signed by the defendant, the defendant's attorney, and 

an attorney for the United States. The defendant agrees to entry of this plea agreement at the date 

and time scheduled with the Court by the United States (in consultation with the defendant's 

attorney). If the defendant withdraws from this agreement, or commits or attempts to commit 

any additional federal, state or local crimes, or intentionally gives materially false, incomplete, or 

misleading testimony or infomiation, or otherwise violates any provision of this agreement, then: 

a. The United States will be released from its obligations under this 

agreement, including any obligation to seek a downward departure or a 

reduction in sentence. The defendant, however, may not withdraw the 

guilty plea entered pursuant to this agreement; 



b. The defendant will be subject to prosecution for any federal criminal 

violation, including, but not limited to, perjury and obstruction of justice, 

that is not time-barred by the applicable statute of limitations on the date 

this agreement is signed. Notwithstanding the subsequent expiration of 

the statute of limitations, in any such prosecution, the defendant agrees to 

waive any statute-of-limitations defense; and 

c. Any prosecution, including the prosecution that is the subject of this 

agreement, may be premised upon any information provided, or statements 

made, by the defendant, and all such information, statements, and leads 

derived therefrom may be used against the defendant. The defendant 

waives any right to claim that statements made before or after the date of 

this agreement, including the statement of facts accompanying this 

agreement or adopted by the defendant and any other statements made 

pursuant to this or any other agreement with the United States, should be 

excluded or suppressed under Fed. R. Evid. 410, Fed. R. Crim. P. 1 l(f), 

the Sentencing Guidelines or any other provision of the Constitution or 

federal law. 

Any alleged breach of this agreement by either party shall be determined by the Court in an 

appropriate proceeding at which the defendant's disclosures and documentary evidence shall be 

admissible and at which the moving party shall be required to establish a breach of the plea 

agreement by a preponderance of the evidence. The proceeding established by this paragraph 

does not apply, however, to the decision of the United States whether to file a motion based on 
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"substantial assistance" as that phrase is used in Rule 35(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal 

Procedure and Section 5K1.1 of the Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements. The 

defendant agrees that the decision whether to file such a motion rests in the sole discretion of the 

United States. 

15. Nature of the Agreement and Modifications 

This written agreement constitutes the complete plea agreement between the United 

States, the defendant, and the defendant's counsel. The defendant and his attorney acknowledge 

that no threats, promises, or representations have been made, nor agreements reached, other than 

those set forth in writing in this plea agreement, to cause the defendant to plead guilty. Any 

modification of this plea agreement shall be valid only as set forth in writing in a supplemental or 

revised plea agreement signed by all parties. 

Dana J. Boente 

United States Attorney 

Timothy TT."Belevetz 

Assistant U.S. Attorney 

Karen Servidea 

Special Assistant U.S. Attorney 

United States Attorney's Office 

2100 Jamieson Avenue 

Alexandria, VA 22314 

Tel: (703) 299-3700 

Fax: (703)299-3981 

timothy.d.belcvelz@usdoi.gov 



Defendant's Signature: 1 hereby agree that I have consulted with my attorney and fully 

understand all rights with respect to the pending criminal information. Further, I fully understand 

all rights with respect to Title 18, United States Code, Section 3553 and the provisions of the 

Sentencing Guidelines Manual that may apply in my case. I have read this plea agreement and 

carefully reviewed every part of it with my attorney. I understand this agreement and voluntarily 

agree to it. 

ex 

Clyd^Austin Gray, Jr. 

Defendant 

Defense Counsel Signature: I am counsel for the defendant in this case. I have fully 

plained to the defendant the defendant's rights with respect to the pending information. 

Further, 1 have reviewed Title 18, United States Code, Section 3553 and the Sentencing 

Guidelines Manual, and I have fully explained to the defendant the provisions that may apply in 

this case. I have carefully reviewed every part of this plea agreement with the defendant. To my 

knowledge, the defendant's decision to enter into this agreement is an informed and voluntary 

one. 

Bobby B. Stafford 

Virginia Bar No. 12309 

Attorney for Clyde Austin Gray, Jr. 

1000 Pendleton Street 

Alexandria, VA 22314 

Tel: (703)549-0284 

Fax:(703)683-5137 

bobbybs@verizon.net 
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